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Amendment 0001

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Q1.  You ask the agency to submit a Performance Assessment Plan (Volume 4). Yet, the RFP very carefully spells out a Performance Assessment Plan (Attachment VIII) and an Award Fee Plan. These cover virtually all the issues that were included in a performance assessment plan.

What is expected of the agency that might differ from the plan set forth in the RFP?

A1.  Although the Army has an existing Performance Assessment Plan, we are looking for your thoughts on what you believe should be included in the assessment of your performance if your agency is the successful offeror.  Offerors are encouraged to propose their best thinking regardless of whether it is similar or different than elements in the current plan as identified in this solicitation.  A Performance Assessment Plan is part of the Proposal Requirements and shall contain the agency’s method(s), or criteria the offeror proposed the Army should use to assess the agency’s in-progress performance and degree of ultimate success in achieving the objectives. The Performance Assessment Plan will be evaluated in accordance with PHASE I – Streamlined Technical (Written) Proposal – FACTOR 5.  

Q2.  Please confirm if the requested pricing information on pages 4-11 of the RFP is to be provided with the submission of August 5th or at the time of award.

A2.  The pricing information on pages 4-11 shall be provided with the offeror’s submission of PHASE I.  See Proposal Requirements Volume 5 – PRICE PROPOSAL.  See revision per amendment. 

Q3.  Will you be calling a meeting of vendors prior to the August 5th solicitation due date and/or oral phase?

A3.  No. The Army will not be calling a meeting of vendors prior to the solicitation due date.  Agencies will be notified telephonically and in writing prior to Phase II and Phase III oral presentations. 

Q4.  Can you identify who is involved in the agency selection process as well as any influencers?

A4. No. 

Q5.  What are the three most important characteristics in an agency partner for the Army?

A5.   Proposals will be evaluated IAW the evaluation criteria.  See 52.212-2 Evaluation – Commercial Items within the solicitation.   

Q6.  What is the process for approving work (i.e., advertising proposals post award) for a selected agency/vendor?  Who is involved in the approval process beyond the Army Brand Group?

A6.  The Army uses a multi level review and approval process.   The Procuring Contracting Officer or Ordering Contracting Officer issues a Task Order that authorizes the agency to begin work.   The USAAC Strategic Outreach Directorate (SOD) in coordination with the Army Brand Group reviews and approves the work.  The Army Brand Group reviews work for consistency with strategy while the SOD reviews work for technical accuracy and compliance with the advertising contract.  Initial reviews occur at the action officer level with the Chief Marketing Officer (CMO) and USAAC SOD Director being the first level of approval.  Depending on the type of work, approvals may be required at various levels of Army leadership to include; the Commanding General USAAC, the Deputy Assistant Secretary and the Assistant Secretary of the Army.  At the discretion of the Secretary of the Army, work may be reviewed by either the Secretary of the Army or the Chief of Staff of the Army.   Correspondence providing official guidance and/or approval of work comes from the Contracting Officer’s Representative (COR), Strategic Outreach Directorate.

Prototypical process for a major, integrated effort:

· Agency presents work for initial review.

· Qualitative testing may be conducted and reviewed, with work revised to reflect learning

· Revised work shown to Army – up through Deputy Assistant Secretary/Command General level

· Quantitative Testing – if/as needed

· Revise work based on learning

· Final approval by senior Army leadership (up through Assistant Secretary of the Army)

· Production

· Review of rough work (e.g., rough cuts, final web work) 

· Finish and run in market

Q7.1.  Phase I Questionnaire – 

Q7.1.a.  Case Studies. Do all the case studies need to be from the lead agency only (i.e., prime contractor) or can they include case studies from one or more of the key agency partners/subcontracting agencies?  Does this answer change for Phase II? 

A7.1.a.  See Proposal Requirements of this solicitation, including the following: “Teaming arrangements are acceptable. Any subcontracting/teaming arrangement must be presented in sufficient detail to enable the Government to fully understand the agency’s approach.”  Please also note that you are allowed to provide more than one case study per question (as long as the page limit is not exceeded).  Phase II content direction is provided in this amendment. 

Q7.1.b.  Additional Work Samples.  Is there a time limit or limit to number of spots/ads featured?  Do all creative examples need to be from the lead office managing the Army account or can it include relevant work from the agency’s network?  Can these creative examples also feature work from our subcontracting partners? 

A7.1.b.  The RFP does not have specific time limits or limits to number of spots/ads featured. See proposal requirements for other limits and direction.

A7.1.c.  Section SF 1449 Continuation Sheet/Schedule of Supplies or Services and Prices. Can you clarify whether pages 4-11 are required to be filled out and submitted as part of the Phase I submission? 

A7.1.c.  Pages 4-11 are required to be filled out and submitted as part of the Phase I submission. See Answer to #2. 

A7.1.d.  Subcontracting Plan.  Can you direct us to the location of FAR 19.704, which was referred to?

A7.1.d.  The RFP is not referring to any specific portion of FAR 19.704.  All portions of this section must be complied within the awarded contract.  Federal Acquisition Regulations can be purchased from commercial vendors or accessed on the Internet at http://www.arnet.gov/far or http://farsite.hill.af.mil/.

A7.1.e.  Attachment II (Labor Categories and Blended Labor Rates).  Do the hour estimates shown in Attachment II include all expected hours required?  That is, do they include time required for separately priced task orders?  Are the rates per hour we provide expected to be based on the projected annual workload summary or independent of that?

        Is it necessary to disclose the components of the hourly rates (e.g., overhead rates, profit margins, etc.)? Attachment II shows one hourly rate for each category. Clearly this rate will be a weighted average of various experience levels within the category. In pricing Task Orders, will we be restricted to a single hourly rate by category or will we be able to price levels within the category?  

A7.1.e.  The hours shown reflects the Government’s best estimate. Yes, they do include the Government’s best estimate for separately priced task orders. The Government cannot advise the offeror on the basis for their pricing. It is a matter of the offeror’s discretion. No, it is not necessary to disclose the components of the hourly rates (e.g., overhead rates, profit, etc). Yes, the awardee will restricted to a single hourly rate by category (PRIME or 1st tier SUBCONTRACTED). See revised Attachment II per amendment. 

A7.1.f.  Pages 16-18 and Schedule III describe the basis for project fees in each Request for Task Order (RFTO).  Point 6(g) refers to annual task orders and Point 6(i) refers to “bought out labor.”  Does this mean that certain employees will be fully dedicated to Army and “bought out” 100% on an annual basis? 

A7.1.f.  No. Whether or not employees are dedicated to this contract is at the discretion of 

the agency.  See revision per amendment. 

A7.1.g.  Are we expected to propose the size of the incentives for Schedule VIII and the following Award Fee Plan?  Can we get a range of how much this incentive award has been historically? 

A7.1.g.  No. Offeror’s are not expected to propose the size of the incentives in Attachment VIII.  These percentages will be negotiated prior to contract award. No.  The Army will not disclose in the amendment the incentive award based on current contract.  

A7.1.h.  Are we correct in assuming the total agency fees will be made up of three components? Annual base fee for “bought out” labor.  Project fee based on specific assignment.  A performance bonus. 

A7.1.h.  The agency will be compensated through: 1) Firm-Fixed-Price task orders, and 2) through performance award fee, as earned.

A7.1.i.  Page 18, Item K, indicates, “pricing will only be firm fixed price.  Labor and other direct expenses will not be reimbursed on a cost basis.”  Please confirm that this means no reconciliation on jobs for fee or direct cost. 

A7.1.i.  The prospective solicitation/contract is written as a Firm-Fixed-Price (Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity – Award Fee.  In accordance with FAR 16.202-1, the price is not subject to adjustment on the basis of the contractor’s cost experience. 

A7.1.j.  On Page 66, c, “Representations for contract to be performed in the US,” are these to be included in the submission for Phase I? 

A7j.  Yes. Representations and certifications is part of the SF 1449 solicitation. See Representations and Certifications under Proposal Requirements – Volume 2. 

A7.1.k.   On Page 66, 8-(A), Offeror’s number of employees for the past 12 months and (B) Offeror’s average annual gross revenue for the last 3 fiscal years, are these to be included as part of the submission for Phase I? 

A7.1.k.  Yes.

A7l.   On Page 67 9, 9-(A), 9-(B), directs us to complete if solicitation contains clause 52.219-23.  Can you confirm whether such clause is included, and if so, identify its location? 

A7.1.l.  The cited clause is not included in this solicitation. 

A7.1.m.  Page 89 (1) Volume 1.  What is the difference between the Questionnaire (Streamlined Technical Written Proposal) and the fully executed and signed RFP?  Does this refer to Standard Form 1449? 

A7.1.m.  The Streamlined Technical (Written) Proposal is described in paragraph b of the Proposal Requirements. A “Completed and Signed copy of the solicitation” is IAW the RFP, which includes the Standard Form 1449 and all the following, pages as amended. 

A7.1.n. Page 90 c states all volumes should be submitted in separate 3 ring binders; however, it omits mention of Volume 4 (Performance Assessment Plan).  Can you confirm that this section is also to be submitted in a separate 3 ring binder?

A7.1.n.  Yes, Volume 4 – (Performance Assessment Plan)  shall be submitted in a separate 3 ring binder. 

Q7.2.  Phase II and III Oral Presentations – 

Q7.2.a   Can you provide the expected timing/dates for Phase II and Phase III oral presentations?

Q7.2.b.  Can you indicate how long each of these meetings will be?

Q7.2.c.  Can you identify who will attend the Phase II and Phase III presentations from the review committee?

Q7.2.d.  Will there be further briefing materials and/or instruction provided prior to Phase II or Phase III?

Q7.2.e.  Do you have any creative and/or media parameters that would factor into our recommendations (e.g., quarterly spending requirements, prohibited media vehicles, etc.)?

Q7.2.f.  Can you provide the current cost per recruit?  Does the Army have a defined objective to reduce this cost?

Q7.2.g.  Do you have % recruitment goals broken out by ethnicity?

A7.2.  Phase II and III Oral Presentations answers are as follows:

A7.2.a – A7.2.d.  See Attachment X of this amendment. Phase II is tentatively scheduled for September 2004. It will not exceed 2.5 hours (to include Q&As). Phase III is tentatively scheduled for October 2004. It will not exceed 3.0 hours (to include Q&As). 

A7.2.e.  Rather than prohibiting specific media vehicles, we require editorial guidelines as part of media contracts prohibiting positioning within content containing sexually offensive or gratuitous sex, excessive or gratuitous violence, socially derogative content, or content antithetical to the U.S. Army.

A7.2.f.  No. Not explicitly.  

A7.2.g.  No. 

Q8.  If an agency is a US based organization, but carries a French name and is linked to and owned by a French (Paris-based) holding company would they be disqualified or considered an unfavorable choice by the Army’s review team due to their foreign affiliation?

A8.  No. 

Q9.  Must all responding agencies be solely US owned and operated companies?

A9.  No.  

Q10.  Is the US Army actively considering agencies based on the West Coast, given the headquarters location of the Army divisions?

A10.  All proposals received will be considered. 

Q11.  Can you confirm and clarify all markets where the responding agency would need to staff FAEs (Field Account Executives)?

A11.  For ROTC the locations are Fort Knox, KY and Fort Lewis, WA. U.S. Army Recruiting Command (USAREC) has an agency Field Marketing Representative at each of the five brigade headquarters (Fort Meade, MD; Fort Gilliem, GA; Fort Knox, KY; Fort Sam Houston, TX; and Nellis Air Force Base, NV). 

Q12.  What is the approximate date for the Oral Presentation?

A12.  See Answer to #7. 

Q13.  Is the responding agency expected to send a written draft of their Oral Presentation prior to that meeting?  If so, when is that written piece due?

A13.  Written drafts are not expected. 

Q14.  What additional material should we expect to receive concerning Phase II or III?  If there is additional material, will the material impact our understanding of the challenge stated in the RFP?

A14.  See Attachment X per amendment. 

Q15.  Do the labor hours of a teaming partner offset or count toward the total hours noted in Attachment II?  Or do the labor hours of a teaming partner count toward the ODE cost of $200M?

A15.  Teaming partners labor hours are to be included in the Attachment II, as amended.

Q16.  In the past, Army research has been made available to prospective contractors. Will there be an opportunity to review Army research and if so, when will that be arranged?

A16.  The Army does not intend to provide any research during the solicitation phase of this procurement.  The objective is to gain an understanding of what insights and abilities the offeror can offer versus having responses and insights limited to ideas and work based on what the Army has in its possession now.  

Q17.  Is the contractor/agency responsible for managing and procuring the 1-800 lines or does the government handle this?   Will the 1-800 lines transfer to the new incumbent?

A17.  The offeror is responsible for procuring and managing the 1-800 lines for the Army.  The current lines will transfer to a new incumbent, if warranted. 

Q18.  Is the intention of the Army to change fulfillment vendors upon award of this contract to anyone other than the incumbent?   If not, how does the 35% small business calculation against total contract cost get done if this cost for fulfillment is not under the control of the bidder?

A18.  The use of fulfillment vendors is at the discretion of the offeror. 

Q19.  Since we are a market research vendor and not an advertising agency, we would be interested in bidding on only those segments pertaining to market research.  Has a full RFP been developed for the research portions of this solicitation?  If so, we would appreciate receiving that.

A19.  No. There is no solicitation for market research. 

Q20.  INFORMATION (1):  If a subcontractor is hired post award of the contract (and not included in the blended rate build up because they are not known at the time) are their costs to be proposed/billed through as labor or Other Direct Expenses (ODE) as they would not have been included in the original hourly rate build up? 

A20.  Their costs should be proposed (but not billed) as labor. All task orders issued on this contract will be firm fixed price, therefore there will be no labor “billings.”  Upon completion of the task, the agency will bill for the task completed at the agreed upon price unless otherwise stated in the task order issued by either the Procuring Contracting Officer or the Ordering Contracting Officer’s.  See revised Schedule or Supplies and Prices and Attachment II per amendment. 
Q21. (PAGE 16) 4. PROOF OF PERFORMANCE b.:  In order to avoid negative cash flow for the Agency (assuming payment terms are agreed to in the Task Order upfront), will the Agency be allowed to progress bill the Army for labor and ODE should a project have a longer elapsed start to finish time?

A21.  The offeror and the Procuring Contracting Officer or the Ordering Contracting Officer may agree upon incremental payments.

Q22. (PAGE 17) 6. REQUEST FOR TASK ORDER (S)(RFTO) e.:  “…the contractor shall select subcontractors (including suppliers) on a competitive basis to the maximum extent practicable.  The RFTOs shall identify the subcontractors to be used in performance of the task order(s) and shall include and explanation of the procedures used for selecting each subcontractor.”  Does this mean the RFTO should not be submitted until a subcontractor is awarded a project?  From our understanding the Agency would not be able to award a supplier a job until a Task Order (TO) is awarded by the Army.  Please specify how the Agency would accomplish awarding a subcontractor an award before issuance of a TO. 

A22.  The RFTO should not be submitted until after the offeror has received proposals/quotes from subcontractors for work it intends to subcontract. The agency may choose not to award a subcontract until the task order is awarded. 

Q23. (PAGE 17) 6. REQUEST FOR TASK ORDER(S) 10.:  If RFTOs are not submitted on an annual basis, is quarterly breakout of funding still required? 

A23.  Each task order will be fully funded. Funding will not be based upon annual or quarterly basis. 

Q24. (PAGE 18) 6. REQUEST FOR TASK ORDER(S) 11 f. and g.:  If a change in scope from the originally approved TO occurs, does the Agency have the ability to issue a modification for change in scope to secure funds/return funds to execute the change request?  If NO, then how is the Agency financially responsible for change requests by the Army that were not included in the original TO? 

A24.  The agency cannot issue a modification, but may request and submit a separate RFTO for one from the Army.  Any modifications to the scope of a task order resulting in a change of prices must be negotiated by the Procuring Contracting Officer or the Ordering Contracting Officer and the offeror. Disputes are subject to the Contract Disputes Act. 

Q25. (PAGE 18) 6. REQUEST FOR TASK ORDER(S) k.:  “Pricing will only be firm fixed price. Labor and other direct expenses will NOT be reimbursed on a cost basis.”  How are changes in scope handled whether it is defined as an increase or decrease to the original TO?  Is equitable adjustment to either party allowed to be obtained through a modification process?  

A25.  See Answer to #24.

Q26. (PAGE 18) 6. REQUEST FOR TASK ORDER(S) m.:  Please define “activity status report”.  Is this for labor billing or ODE billing?  

A26.  An activity status report is a written status of the project that supports an invoice submitted prior to the completion of the final deliverable.  Its purpose is to substantiate incremental invoices submitted IAW the terms of the task order. 

Q27. (PAGE 18) 8. TASK ORDER(S) a.:  “The parties will be bound as regards to contractor labor.”  How are labor adjustments considered (increase or decrease) if a change in the original agreed to scope of the project changes?  

A27.  See Answer to #24. 

Q28.  (PAGE 19) 8. TASK ORDER(S) b.:  Please confirm that a modification to a TO for changes that occur from the original approved scope of work are permissible (either an increase or decrease to scope for both labor and ODEs).  

A28. See Answer to #24. 

Q29.  (PAGE 19) 10. PRODUCTION a.:  “Task orders will NOT be billed or paid on a cost reimbursement basis or time and materials basis.”  Under firm fixed price this is understandable.  If there is a change in plans/scope on a production site versus the agreed to scope of work how is this handled financially? If items out of scope arise who is financially responsible if not included in the approved scope of work?  

A29. See Answer to #24. 

Q30.  (PAGE 23) ATTACHMENT II:   Please confirm that labor plus award fee plus ODEs should not exceed $200M.  Does the $200M include non-agency costs (i.e. printing and postage)?

A30.  This assumption is incorrect.  The $200 Million for other direct expenses represents the Government’s best estimate for subcontracted labor (exclusive of 1st tier) and all other direct costs.   

Q31. (PAGE 36) QUESTIONS 10 - 13 AND 16 – 18:  Are these to reflect the “lead agency” or should a lead agency include its sister companies who may house those services (i.e. media)? 

A31.  As stated in the solicitation, these answers should reflect the “lead agency”. If there are services not handled by the lead agency, then they should be noted as such.

Q32. (PAGE 44) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN, A. QUALITY:  “Macro indicators at the contract level will be derived from statistical analysis of monthly and cumulative task order performance, as well as comparison with prior years contract totals (such as cost, percentage of on-time completion…”  Please explain how this statistical analysis is conducted.  What benchmarks/measurement tools will be used? 

A32.  See Answer #1. Statistical analysis will be conducted by the U.S. Army. It will be presented and discussed with the contractor semi-annual, and annually.  Project Tracker will be used to track schedule progress. Quality will be assessed by the Performance Assessment Reports. Methodology of the statistical analysis will be determined at a later date. 

Q33. (PAGE 44) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN A. QUALITY, MEASUREMENT b.:  What are “task order performance standards”?  They are not defined in the RFP.  

A33.  See Answer #1. Each task order will address performance standards individually at a minimum. These standards will address timely performance and customer satisfaction. 

Q34.  (PAGE 45) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN 3. MEET TARGET NUMBER OF RECRUITS a) and b):  If target number of recruits are met on an annual basis (under in some months, over in others) does that constitute meeting target number of recruits or does each month have to be met independently? 

A34.  The target number of recruits is to be met on an annual basis. 

Q35.  (PAGE 45) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN 4. EXCEED THE ESTABLISHED SMALL BUSINESS GOALS:  If the Small Business goal is achieved at 35% but the sub-goals are off (+/-) is the Agency eligible for award in this category?  Does each category have to exceed the minimum to be considered for eligibility or just in total at 35%? 

A35.  Yes, the agency would be eligible for award in the Small Business category if the 35% goal is achieved. No, each category does not have to be exceeded to be eligible for award. See revisions per amendment (Award Fee Plan). 

Q36.  (PAGE 45) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN 4. EXCEED THE ESTABLISHED SMALL BUSINESS GOALS:  Is the subcontracting goal a percentage of contract dollars or available subcontract dollars?  If contract dollars (as stated), please confirm that 35% of $200M ($70,000,000) is required to be subcontracted to small businesses.  Additionally, of the $200M is it assumed that a portion of this amount is non-Agency costs (printing and postage)? If so, how much, as that portion would not be available for subcontracting. 

A36.  Subcontracting goals are the 35% percent of total contract dollars awarded.  

Q37.   (PAGE 45) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN 4. EXCEED THE ESTABLISHED SMALL BUSINESS GOALS:  Is this part of the award measured on an annual contract year or fiscal year?  Are the achievement of the goals measured for the period of filing or cumulatively? 

A37.  It will be measured on the annual contract year.  Achievement of goals is measured for the current period of performance of the contract (DD 294) and cumulatively (DD 295). 

Q38.  (PAGE 45) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN 4. B. COST:  “Standard for satisfactory performance is to maintain costs at/below prior contract yearly average labor rate.”  If the agency is on a fixed rate schedule by department please explain the above sentence as to what prior contract yearly average labor rate is defined as. 

A38.  An amendment will be issued to change the standard to read… “Standard for satisfactory performance is to maintain the ratio of labor dollars to total contract dollars at a rate at or below previous year’s ratios. 

Q39.  PAGE 45) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN 4. B. COST:  Measurement states that 100% of all task orders will be completed within 1% of negotiated price.  If a task order is firm fixed price, how will the Army determine if there is a deviation as actuals are not reimbursed for under this type of contract yet a firm price is paid for the services regardless of actual costs incurred?  

A39.  See revision per amendment. 

Q40.  (PAGE 46) PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PLAN 4. C. SCHEDULE:  Does this assume that the Army has established timelines and will not deviate from them? 

A40.  Yes, timelines are established on all projects at the time the plan or individual projects are approved and will not be changed without the expressed approval of the Procuring Contracting Officer or the Ordering Contracting Officer. 

Q41.   (PAGE 51) SECTION 4.1 AWARD FEE CRITERIA:  Should the prospective contractor include its proposed allocation for these four areas over the 5-year term of the contract?  This page only shows 1 base year and 3 option periods listed but earlier in the RFP it states there are 4 option years. 

A41.  See Answer to #A7g. Proposed allocations will be based on 1 base year and 4 option periods for a total potential of a 5-year term. These percentages will be negotiated prior to contract award.  

Q42.  (PAGE 58) SECTION 6.1 GENERAL:  “The maximum fee for each award fee milestone is set forth elsewhere in this plan.”  Please advise as to where the maximum fees for this are in the RFP.  

A42.  The maximum award fee dollars will be negotiated prior to contract award and will be incorporated into the award fee plan. 

Q43.  TRAVEL – There is no mention of how travel for business purposes for the lead Agency and all of its subcontractors is reimbursed.  Please provide guidance, assuming Agency and all subcontractor travel is reimbursable by the Government. 

A43.  The agency shall submit one RFTO for all meeting travel for the lead agency and its subcontractors that is not tied to a specific project.  Travel will be negotiated at a firm fixed price.  Other travel will be included with the individual project RFTOs and price will be a part of the firm fixed price negotiated total of the task order.

Q44.  (PAGE 78) 8. FAR clause 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995) B. (1). “The Contractor is not obligated to honor any order for a single item in excess of $20,000,000”.  How does this apply to Media if a single annual task order where to be awarded for the year? 

A44.  If a task order is issued in excess of $20M, the offeror would not be obligated to accept it for performance. 

Q45.  (PAGE 87) g. CONTRACT AWARD:  “The Government intends to evaluate offers and award a contract without discussions with offerors.”  Would this be at the proposed price and terms or could the Government unilaterally award a contract without discussions and at a lower price or rates and with different terms?  

A45.  Yes, it would be at the proposed price and terms if the Government were to award without discussions. However, the Government reserves the right to conduct discussions if later determined by the contracting officer to be necessary. 

Q46.  (Page 38) Section IV. SUBCONTRACTING PLAN AND PAST PERFORMANCE IN SUBCONTRACTING.  The way it is presented, the Army’s Subcontracting Plan goal of 3% to Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small businesses excludes subcontracting with Veteran Owned Small business concerns.  Will this be modified, within the 35% requirement, to allow the agency to receive specific credit for awards made to Veteran Owned Small Business concerns? 

A46.  The Department of Defense prime and subcontract goal is for Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned small business. There is not a separate goal for veteran-owned small business. 

Q47.  Page 26, typo: OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES (ODC’S).  Should be (ODEs). 

A47.  Correct. It is changed to read ODEs. 

Q48.  Page 27, typo: “The Government Cost Estimate for ODC’s…should be “(ODEs)”. 

A48.  Correct. It is changed to read ODEs. 

Q49.  Page 52, typo: Paragraph 4.2 g. “Ethnic Taget Marketing…should be “Ethnic Target Marketing…” 

A49.  Correct. It is changed to read Target. 

Q50.  Page 83 FAR 52.226-1 Utilization of Indian Organizations…should be “Indian Organizations…” 

A50.  No change --- FAR 52.226-1 reads “Utilization of Indian Organizations and Indian Owned Economic Enterprises.”

Q51.  Page 93, Factor 4. If an agency has a well-established and diversified supplier base, it may be able to satisfy the Small Business Subcontracting Plan goals without naming potential subcontractors in its proposal.  Is it a requirement to list the names of potential subcontractors that an agency proposes to use to satisfy the Small Business Subcontracting Plan goals? 

A51. There is no absolute requirement to identify potential subcontractors.  However, a thorough review of a subcontracting plan will be evaluated. See 52.212-2 Evaluation – Commercial Items within the solicitation. 

Q52.  PRINTING.  The RFP is silent on printing. Will printing be the responsibility of the Agency or the Government Printing Office?  

A52.  USAAC is responsible for all printing.  All printing must be performed by the Government Printing Office (GPO).

Q53.   Page 48, AWARD FEE PLAN.  Will the Agency have appellate rights for reconsideration or re-determination under the Award Fee Plan?  If so, at what level and will the appellate process, if any, be incorporated into the contract? 

A53.  There are no contractual appellate rights for the Award Fee Plan. 

Q54.  Page 91(e), PRE-AWARD SURVEY.  If your offer is one of those favorably considered, a survey team may contact your facility for the purpose of determining your financial and technical ability to perform.  Are you able to specify the areas under “financial and technical” the survey team may/will evaluate?  What weight will be given to this survey as far as the Agency’s offer is concerned?  For instance, will the results of the survey be graded on a pass/fail basis?  If an Agency fails the survey, will it be eliminated from consideration or will it be given an opportunity to correct any deficiencies?  If the deficiencies are corrected, will the Agency’s offer still be considered “favorable?”  

A54.  The survey team will assess whether the agency has the ability to perform and will have an impact on whether, IAW FAR 9.105-2, the contracting officer determines that the contractor is responsible to perform. This survey is not part of any weighted qualitative evaluation factor.  

Q55.  What will be the composition of the survey team (DCAA, Contractor, etc.)?  

A55.  Composition of the survey team is unknown at this time. 

Q56.  CONTRACT PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE.  Does the Government intend to award a contract, for advertising services, that coincides with the Government’s fiscal year (October through September)?  

A56.  No. 

Q57.  Page 14, 2b.  What types of Warrant Officers are to be procured? (Technical, Administrative, Flight or Army Band)

A57.  All types of Warrant Officers are to be assessed, but the purpose of Warrant Officer advertising is to generate sufficient awareness and interest to drive prospects to contact Warrant Officer recruiters.

Q58.  Page 15, 2c.  What about the Prior Service segment? 

A58.  Currently, the prior service segment is targeted with Reserve Prior Service messages. 
Q59.  Page 15, 3a.  Please confirm that tactical planning includes product positioning. 

A59.  Product positioning is not part of a tactical plan.  The Army provides the strategic plan, against which the specific marketing mix, tactics and creative work are developed.  The strategic plan includes the strategic product positioning, as approved by Army Leadership.  Strategic plans are developed with input from multiple sources, including the Army’s advertising agency. 
Q60.  Page 15, 3a. Please define ‘incentives’ and ‘disincentives’. 

A60.  Incentives are factors that motivate a potential recruit to contact a recruiter. Disincentives are factors that deter a potential recruit from contracting a recruiter. 

Q61.  Page 15, 3b.  Will the Agency be required to conduct focus group and copy research?

A61.  Not usually.  The Army is responsible for developing the research and finding suppliers.  The offeror is typically requested to provide input and participate (e.g., observe focus group sessions, join the Army when receiving presentations by research suppliers).  The offeror may be tasked to prepare stimuli (typically concepts or creative materials) used for this research.  The Army is open to considering research that the offeror may recommend. 

Q62.  Page 15, 3c.  Will the Agency be responsible for strategic analysis? 

A62.  The agency provides input and analysis as part of providing input to the Army for the strategic plan development and as part of routine business evaluation and plan updates, typically conducted quarterly.  

Q63.  Page 17, 7.  If, for example, the RFTO is for media placement, would an approved media plan be sufficient explanation of why each media outlet (subcontractor) was selected? 

A63.  Yes, if the media plan contains sufficient detail to show the value of that outlet to Army and if the criteria for selection are clearly defined and agreed upon. These would be requirements for the plan to be approved. If the plan does not contain sufficient detail about the media vehicles selected or the basis (criteria) used for their selection, the media plan will not be approved.

We do require media vehicles selected to provide guarantees whenever possible, to protect government interests. If during the execution of a media plan, any media outlet makes radical changes or undergoes a change, in ratings for example, we would expect the offeror to reexamine and even renegotiate the use of that vehicle.  So approval of a plan is not a blanket acceptance of the media vehicles included in it.

Q64.  Page 17, 8(i).  Will the specific objectives to be performed, by department, need to be specified in each RFTO?  For example, developing a direct mail piece is a fairly standardized process using the same department each time.  Does this have to be specified each time a direct mail RFTO is written?  Will a sample of the labor grid be provided? 

A64.  Each RFTO when awarded becomes an individual legally binding stand-alone task order.  Specific objectives to be performed must be specified in each RFTO.  A sample labor grid is provided as an attachment in the amendment.

Q65.  Page 17, 8(ii). Will all travel of Agency’s staff be handled on individual project RFTOs?  How will travel be handled for required meeting that are not tied to a specific project? 

A65.  Most travel will be handled on individual project RFTOs.  Travel will be part of the negotiated firm fixed price TOs.   The balance will be contained on one firm fixed price task order for meeting travel not tied to a specific project.   

Q66.  Page 17, 10.  Will there be Quarterly breakouts? 

A66.  There will be quarterly breakouts for annual task orders to include, but not limited to, Media, Operation of LEADS Processing Center, Telemarketing, etc. depending on availability of funds at time of award of the task order.  Most other projects will be funded in their entirety when the Task Order is awarded.

Q67.  Page 18, f.  What if the size, duration or elements of a project change after the FFP TO is issued?  For example, the Agency writes an RFTO for a TV commercial to be filmed at one location in the US and is issued a TO.  As the project evolves, the Army directs the commercial to be filmed in Kuwait.  The costs associated with the change will be significantly higher.  In this example, what equitable adjustment is provided the Agency for the Army’s directed change?  Will the Agency still be held to the number of hours and expenses in the original TO? 

A67.  See Answer to #24. 

Q68.  Page 18, g.  What is the anticipated scope of annual TOs? Will they cover yearlong activities such as a print media plan or would they cover entire related areas of activity like all media, all lead gen, etc?  How will the decision as to annual vs. project specific TOs be made? 

A68.  It is anticipated that annual TOs will cover media, services such as LEADS/ARMS, telemarketing, and Agency Executive/Program labor, Motor sports.  Project specific TOs will be issued for other projects.   Project TOs will be issued for any project that is not an annual ongoing service/event by issuance of an Ad Direction Sheet from the Contracting Officer’s Representative (COR). 

Q69.  Page 18, j.  What is meant by ‘subsequent modification’?  

A69.  Subsequent modifications refer to an approved modification to an existing Task Order by the Procuring Contracting Officer or the Ordering Contracting Officer’s due to an approved change in scope.

Q70.  Page 18, k.  What if the size, duration or deliverables of a project change after a TO is issued?  When and how are such situations addressed?  Will it be the Agency’s responsibility to apply for equitable adjustment under appropriate FAR regulations? 

A70.  See Answer to #24. 

Q71.  Page 18, 7.  In the second sentence, please clarify the following “…are those approved in writing by either the Contracting Officer.”  Is there more to this sentence?  Is there another individual that will be designated to approve TOs? 

A71.  The word ‘either’ is hereby deleted and the phrase, “by the Procuring Contracting Officer or the Ordering Officer” is added at the end of the sentence.  
Q72.  Page 19, b.  Define what circumstances warrant a modification?  Who decides?  Define the modification process, timing and required forms.   
A72.  See Answer to #24. 

Q73.  Page 19, c.  Please clarify as to why 180 calendar days allowed for production? 

A73.  For production using Army assets, sufficient lead-time must be allowed to task military commands and find assets not otherwise tasked to pursue things like the Global War on Terrorism.  Any production project must pass through several levels of command for approval, and potential revision.  It is during this time that research is accomplished to refine concepts and coordination with Army installations is accomplished to define filming support requirements.

Q74.  Page 19, 9d. Does this mean the Agency retains custody of film separations used for printing brochures or direct mail pieces or just the artwork?

A74.  Agency retains possession of all artwork and film for the duration of the contract unless otherwise specified. 

Q75.  Page 10, 10c. Does this mean that every piece (print ad, direct mail piece, brochure, etc.) must have three (3) alternatives for every photograph used? 

A75.  Yes.  Each project must consist of 3 alternatives including alternate photos. Unless otherwise tasked by the Army, the contractor shall provide a recommended choice and two alternatives. Example – As photographers commonly take multiple shots/angles, etc. for any given scene, the Army expects to see at least 3 recommendations/options for every photo requirement. Depending on the similarity of the photos to be considered, it may not be necessary for each photo to actually be layed into an ad/layout for the Army to consider the recommendation. 

Q76.  Page 20, 10g. What kinds of development times are included in “accelerated creative”? 

A76.  Projects deemed to be of utmost importance to the Army recruiting mission sometimes require accelerated creative, such as a revised TV spot within 60 days due to circumstances like the changing world situation, for example.  Specific times are dependent upon the specific circumstances.

Q77.  Page 21.  PRODUCTION.  What about Special Forces?  Warrant Officer?  Reserve Prior Service?  Are these ten (10) print ads across all missions?

A77.   Print product requirements vary by mission and current inventory.  See revised Attachment I per amendment. 

Q78.  Page 22.  DIRECT RESPONSE.  Are these 400,000 inquiries and 320,000 leads across all missions?  How about 300,000 calls and 20 scripts?  Will these numbers be clarified and/or confirmed? 

A78.  Yes.  These include all missions. These are based on historical data and will not be clarified.  See revised Attachment I to this amendment. 

Q79.  Page 22.  PROMOTIONS/EVENT MARKETING.  Why is there only one (1) sports sponsorship?  

A79.  This section refers to each sponsorship program executed by the Army, which includes NHRA, NASCAR, Arena Football, PBR, PRCA, and the Army All American Bowl.  See revised Attachment I to this amendment. 

Q80. Pages 51-52.  Given the number of missions and products, these numbers seem low.  Will they be reviewed and more realistic estimates be provided to the bidders before the proposal due date? 

A80.  See revised Attachment I per amendment. 

Q81.  Page 33.  “Is “Full Service” a department description?

A81.  No it is not a department description. 

Q82. Page 35II 2,3,4,5.  Is there a limit of three (3) pages per question? 

A82.  Yes, See Attachment VI. 

Q83.  Page 36III 7, 8.  Is there a limit of three (3) pages per question? 

A83.  Yes, See Attachment VI. 

Q84.  Page 39, 2.  Please confirm whether or not that this is a duplicate of what is requested in Phase 1, page 34I 1, 2 and 4. 

A84.  Offeror may either reprise the cases in the Phase I questionnaire or  introduce new ones. 

Q85.  Page 39, 3, line 1.  It is written: “In these case studies please identify your agency’s specific insights…” What does the Army consider as an agency’s insight?  Will an example be provided? 

A85.  The Army is looking for business, target market or communications insights that the offeror specifically brought to the client’s marketing challenges vs. something the client had already uncovered or developed on their own.  Insights are intended to reflect thinking and ideas as opposed to the resulting tactics.  No example will be provided. 

Q86. Page 39.  PHASE 2. What is the time limit for the Phase 2 Oral Presentation?

A86.  See Answer to #7. 

Q87.  Page 44.  What is the performance standard referred to at: “A – Measurement b. – 95% of all task order performance standards successfully accomplished? 

A87.  Although the Army’s goal is 100% timeliness on all projects, reality dictates that there will be unforeseen circumstances that will impact 100% timeliness.  Therefore, the standard is set at 95% for on time delivery of projects. 

Q88.  Page 45.  Under Measurement a), what is meant by: “90% of all copy testing will meet the target audience”? 

A88.  Measurement to be used and evaluated by the Army. See Answer to #87.

Q89.  Page 45.  Under Measurement b), what are all the standards/norms utilized by Millward Brown?  What are their foundations and definitions? 

A89.  The measures selected by the Army for inclusion track and evaluate whether the work, in market, is: 1) breaking through the marketplace clutter and 2) communicating the intended benefit(s).  Millward Brown, a recognized leader in this type of quantitative research, is currently the selected source for this tracking information

Q90.  Page 45.  Under Measurement c), what are the standards/norms by TNS?  What are their foundations and definitions?

A90.  The Army uses testing to help evaluate work prior to running in market.  The learning is also intended to be an aid for refinement of the work, if needed, and a source of learning for development of future work.  TNS, a leading research company, has been the test supplier used.  Key measures indicate whether work meets “breakthrough” and motivation norms/objectives.  Goals are established in the strategic plan and reflect the usual business expectation that work will meet norms and improve over time.  Input for these goals is based on previous Army work and the norm for other “service” advertising.

Q91.  Page 45, 3b.  MEETING THE ACCESSIONS MISSIONS.  How is the impact of the sales force factored into mission accomplishment?  What is the expected percentage contribution to mission accomplishment from the Agency’s efforts? 

A91.  Consideration of the sales force is taken into account in the development of the strategic plan.  It is expected that the communications effort will support the other elements of the marketing mix enabling the Army to accomplish it recruiting missions.
Q92.  Page 45B.  COST.  Will the Agency be required to complete and report planned vs. actual costs for each TO each month?  How will the changes in the type/scope of activity and the associated impact on labor taken into account?

A92.  The agency will not be required to report planned vs. actual cost.  See Answer to

#24. 

Q93.  Page 46C.  SCHEDULE.  Will the Agency be held responsible for delivery/performance delays that are not its fault and/or are caused by the Army? 

A93. The agency will not be held responsible for delivery delays caused solely by the Government. 

Q94.  Page 54, 4.2.1.2.5c, h.  Please correct and/or confirm that the Direct Response Group is responsible for purchasing and evaluation of direct response (DRTV) media and not Media Measurement and Administration. 

A94.  The reference should read... 4.2.1.1.5c, h. Currently, the direct response group plans and evaluates DRTV (purchasing through a subcontractor), but it is coordinated with awareness media plans to avoid conflicts and to maximize impact.   However, there is no requirement for one group to purchase media over another.  The agency is expected to operate in the most effective and cost efficient manner possible.
Q95.  Page 56, 4.4a. This seems to say that leads must always increase vs. the prior year.  Is this correct? 

A95.   The number of leads to be generated each year must be adequate to support the recruiting mission for the year.  The number of leads is initially determined in the annual plan, but might be adjusted during the year based on recruiting progress or mission fluctuations.  In the case where a year’s mission is lower than previous years, the number of leads to be generated may be fewer.  Two key factors impact the lead goal: 1. Size of the mission; 2. The quality of the leads.  Better quality leads are those that will more likely meet Army qualifications and have a higher rate of actual accession.

Q96. Page 56, 4.4b.  How will the substantial impact of the Sales Force taken into account on mission accomplishment? 

A96.   See Answer to # 91.

Q97.  Page 56, 4.3b.  Will the Agency have input into establishing the criteria and target levels?  If these are long-term measures, how/why will the Agency be evaluated annually? 

A97.  The agency provides input for consideration by the Army during the development of the long-term and near-term strategic plan.  The final decision for goals, however, belongs to the Army.  Goals are set for the long-term, with near-term goals specified to ensure that the long-term direction is achieved.  All aspects of the effort (plan, venders, agencies) are routinely evaluated to determine if efforts remain on track toward these goals.

Q98.  Page 56, 4.6.1.  This seems to place the award fee process on two (2) different timelines: one follows the Army Fiscal Year (FY); and one follows the contract year.  Would it not be more efficient to synchronize them to the same year definition? 

A98.  4.6.1 is correct as written.  The Award Fee is based on two separate timelines.  Criteria 4.1.a, 4.1.b and 4.1d will be based on the contract year.  The criteria at 4.1.c is based on fiscal year in accordance with mission year (as determined by Congress).

Q99.  Page 57, 4.6.2.  Which mid-year?  Is it the contract year or the Army FY? 

A99.  Contract year.

Q100.  Page 57, 4.6.3.  Section 4.5 refers to subcontracting goals, not timeframe.  Which is the correct reference? 

A100.  Typo. It should read in 4.6.3… as defined in 4.6 above. See revision to Attachment VIII per amendment. 

Q101.  Page, 5.2.4.  Does this mean that if the Agency achieves 96% of the goals, it receives nothing in this section?  

A101.  See Answer to #35. 

Q102.  Page 58, 5.2.4. As is stated, this is a “Pass/Fail category”.  What does a “Pass” equate to in the dollars – to be determined- for this category?  For instance, will a “Pass” yield the entire dollar amount or will the “Passes” be graded (High, Medium Low) and dollars awarded accordingly? 

A102.  See Answer to #35.  Dollars will be negotiated prior to contract award. 

Q103.  Page 76, Item (a) KEY PERSONNEL. The contractor shall notify the contracting officer prior to making any changes in key personnel. 

a.  Key Personnel are defined as…Individuals who are designated as key personnel by agreement of the Government and the contractor during negotiations... This may be interpreted to mean that even if the Agency submitted resumes of  personnel, in its proposal, that are considered to be “Key” to contract performance, there may be an opportunity to exchange or replace Key personnel “during negotiations” - prior to contract award.  Is this a correct interpretation?
b. The contractor must demonstrate that the qualifications of prospective personnel are equal to, or better than, the qualifications of the personnel being replaced.   Other than the submission of resumes to the contracting officer, what else will be required of an Agency to “demonstrate” that the qualifications of proposed personnel are equal to or better than the qualifications of the personnel being replaced?
A103. a.  Correct interpretation. 

A103. b.  Resume should suffice. 
Q104.  Page 93 Phase II & Phase III.  Timing – At what point in the process will bidders be notified of the oral presentation schedule? Has a preliminary timeline been laid out and can you share it with the agencies in order to facilitate planning of schedules? 

A104.  See Answer to #A7.2.a. – A7.2.d. See Attachment X per amendment. 

Q105.  Reference page 13, b.1 (a) Is it the government’s intent that each bidder must incorporate the pricing of key “subcontractors” (e.g. ethnic and/or diversity experts) in the blended contract rates that we submit?  (b) If so, is it the government’s expectation that the cost of manpower for such “subcontractors” be part of each bidder’s FFP pricing required by CLINs 0001, 0004, 0007, 0010 and 0013? 

A105a.  Yes.  See revised Attachment II per amendment. 

A105b. Yes. See revised Attachment II per amendment. See FFP pricing required by CLINs 0002, 0006, 0010, 0014, and 0018. Also the offeror’s must disclose the computation (percentage and/or number of personnel per department description, i.e., Account Directors or Managers, Account Supervisors, etc.  per Account Service Department) of the blended rates (PRIME and SUBCONTRACTED CLINs). Such disclosure must include identification by name or description and weighting of all offeror specific labor categories incorporated to arrive at the proposed rates (RFP categories), as amended. 

Q106.  Reference page 15, 3. h  Has the government determined that a field force is absolutely required, for both USAREC and Cadet Command? 

A106.  Use of field marketing personnel has been important for the development and support of local efforts. While there is no intent to change this structure, recommended improvements will be considered.
Q107.  Reference page 14, 4 Proof of performance.  Given that all task order pricing is to be issued as firm fixed price (see page 18, k), please explain the detailed requirement for proof of performance, such as vendor invoices. 

A107.  Proof of performance is not normally required for tangible deliverables that have been delivered in full and accepted by the Army prior to any payment; although subcontractor invoices, tear sheets, affidavits of performance from broadcast advertisers, insertion orders for furnishings, or other specific items stipulated in the task order (s) may be required.  If any special payment terms are requested and awarded on a project, proof of performance documentation shall be required and specified in the task order such as   subcontractor invoices, tear sheets, affidavits of performance from broadcast advertisers, insertion orders for furnishings, or other specific items such as progress reports, as stipulated in the task order (s).
Q108. Reference Attachment I, pages 21 – 22.  (a) No workload is provided for Cadet Command.  Is this data available?  (b) Please identify the 14 Active Army and 8 Reserve Army programs mentioned on page 22. (c) Is this workload inclusive of all ethnic targeted work?  Can you quantify work for Hispanic, African American and Asian/Pacific Islander targets?  (d) The annual workload summary indicates over 400 Delivery/task orders and over 200 modifications.  Is this an accurate assessment of the number of task orders and modifications issued in 2004 and what should be expected in FY05? 

A108a. See revision per amendment. 

A108b. See revision per amendment. 

A108c. Yes, however, see revised Schedule of Supplies or Services and Prices and Attachment II per amendment. 

A108d.  It is the Government’s best estimate. 
Q109.  Reference Attachment II, pages 23 – 28.  (a) Are the hours identified representative of the approximate manpower requirement, by department, necessary for this assignment? In other words, are the hours identified, roughly those purchased from the incumbent, by department, in FY04?  If not, can you provide this information? (b) Are the hours identified in Attachment II inclusive of all agency labor required, to include any ethnic subcontract partners such as Hispanic, African American and/or Asian Pacific Islander specialists?  (c) It is quite possible that the various bidders may employ methodologies using a different number of billable hours per fulltime year (e.g. 1600, 1820, 2040, etc.). It is therefore possible that a bidder using a 2040 rate base will appear to have a significant pricing advantage over another bidder using a 1600 rate base, when no such pricing advantage may exist.  Does the Government intend to ask each bidder to disclose the basis for their hourly rates, in order to ensure a fair and accurate price comparison? (d) Page 18-i-1, indicates that a separate task order will be issued for Executive Labor.  Would the Government consider adding an additional rate category for Executive level personnel or should we blend the cost of billable executives into the categories defined in Attachment II. (e) The number of hours identified for Account Service (65,000) in the base contract year varies from the number (64,000) in option years 1-4.  Was this intentional? 

A109a.  The hours identified are representative of the approximate manpower requirement, by department, and based on historical data.  

A109b.  Yes. See revised Schedule of Supplies or Services and Prices and Attachment II, as amended. 

A109c.  The labor rate proposed will be used for price analysis, including comparative prices among or between offeror’s.  In addition, each offeror shall identify the basis of their hours “standard hours” that represents a full-time employee’s annual labor (after vacation, holiday, etc.)

A109d.  Offeror’s shall utilize the categories provided in Attachment II, as amended. No, the Government will not add an additional rate category for Executive level personnel. 

A109e.  See revised Attachment II, as amended. 

Q110. Reference Attachment VI, pages 34 – 42. (a) The RFP states that work previously contracted by the US Army may not be used as a Case Study.  May Army work be provided as Additional Work Samples since this work is specifically described as “beyond work included in the above cases” (see page 34-6)? (b) Clearly, precluding previous Army work is intended to level the playing field among new bidders and the incumbent agency.  In that spirit, are there any significant research studies that the incumbent agency has access to that have not currently been made available on the website for all bidders?  For example, please provide the market segmentation survey conducted by RAND, which is specifically mentioned in slide 47 of the Army and Army Marketing Overview PowerPoint presentation.  (c) Phase 2 Oral Presentation Agenda – Has the government determined a limit on the time and number of participants?  Please identify. (d) Phase 3 Oral Presentation Challenge – Has the government determined a limit on the time and number of participants?  Please identify. 

A110.a.  No. 

A110.b.  See Answer to #16.

A110.c.  Yes.  See Attachment X to this amendment. 

A110.d.  Yes. See Attachment X to this amendment. 

Q111.  Reference Attachment VIII, pages 44 – 59. (a) Is the sample Performance Assessment Plan representative of the measurement criteria currently used by the Army in evaluating the incumbent? If not, can you provide the current assessment information? (b) Please explain how and/or why the government would measure actual task order completion price vs. negotiated task order price, in a FFP environment (see page 45, B. Cost). (c) Is there an incentive pool available to the incumbent in the current contract? If so, can you tell us what percent of the total available pool was awarded to the incumbent in each of the contract years? (d) Please clarify whether subcontracting goals are based on a percentage of total subcontract opportunities (i.e. actual subcontracts awarded) or as a percentage of total contract dollars, as stated on page 56, section 4.5.  The latter would suggest a value equal to the annual total of Agency Fee, Other Direct Costs and Award Fee. 

A111. a.  Yes.

A111.b.   See Answer to #39. 

A111.c.   Yes, but the information is confidential. 

A111.d     The subcontracting goals are a percentage of total contract dollars. See revision per amendment. 

Q112.  Please provide the mission and accession data for RA and USAR, by Brigade, for fiscal years 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004 YET.  What is the FY 2005 mission?  

A112.  The following is the mission/accession information for the Regular Army enlisted mission:

FY                    Mission                    Achieved 

FY 00               80k                            80.1k

FY01                75.8k                         75.9k

FY02                79.5k                         79.6k

FY03                73.8k                         73.8k

FY04                77k                            Projected to meet mission

FY05                80k                            TBD

The following is the mission/accession for the Army Reserve enlisted mission.

FY                    Mission                    Achieved 

FY02                 28.8k                        31.3k

FY03                 26.4k                        27.3k

FY04                 21.2k                        Projected to meet mission

FY05                 23.1k                        TBD

Q113.  Please provide the actual mission and accession data for ROTC Cadet Command for fiscal years 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004 YTD.  What is the FY 2005 mission? 

A113.  FY 2001 - Mission: 3900; Commissioned: 3308

            FY 2002 - Mission: 3900; Commissioned: 3571

            FY 2003 - Mission: 3900; Commissioned: 3950

            FY 2004 - Mission: 3900; Commissioned as of 7 July: 3750; Projected: 4399

            FY 2005 - Mission: 4523

Q114. Reference Addendum to FAR Provision 52.212-1, page 89. (a) Performance Assessment Plan is mentioned in both Volume1 and Volume 4.  Please clarify the specific requirements for each.  (b) In addition to the use of EXCEL, can Volume 5/ Price Proposal also include an MS Word file to support any information related to pricing assumptions or methodologies? (c) Volumes 3 and 5 require a total of three books (original plus two copies) and only two CDs.  Where would you like the CDs placed/packaged? 

A114.a.  Volume I is corrected to read Questionnaire (Streamlined Technical (Written) Proposal). 

A114.b.  Yes, Volume 5 may include an MS Word file.

A114.c.  Placed/packaged inside the cover of each binder, accordingly. 

Q115.  Please provide some examples of the types of services required by the Office of the Chief of Army Reserve and the approximate budget supporting the work.  

A115.  USAAC provides advertising support to the OCAR Prior Service recruiting mission.  This requires the full spectrum of advertising support, to include: account management, creative, media, direct marketing, Internet, public relations, etc.  In addition, OCAR requires direct support for the Troop Program Unit retention program, which includes Public Relations, publicity, direct marketing and creative development.

Q116.  Can we have access to the most recent (e.g. past two years) accession data for each branch of the DOD (i.e. Army, Navy, Air Force, Marines)?  Is this data available by month/quarter and geography? 

A116. Data is not readily available to include in the amendment. 

Q117.  Does the Army initiate unsolicited contact with potential recruits?  If so, (a) What event(s) trigger this contact (e.g., age, driver’s license, HS graduation)? (b) What data sets are used to identify persons/households with these triggering events? (c) How is the initial contact made or in what channel does that contact occur? 

A117.a.  Yes. Your assumptions are correct. 

A117.b.  Age, Education level, High School lists, college lists, referrals

A117.c.   Numerous methods to include Direct Mail, face-to-face, cold calls etc.

Q118.  When someone expresses interest, what process nurtures that interest before meeting a recruiter?  What are the follow-on steps, by whom, and when?  Do any of these steps seek to:
· Qualify (or rank) a prospect
· Disqualify a prospect
· Maintain/increase a prospect’s interest
· Maintain/increase a prospect’s intention
A118.  Interested prospects are fulfilled with a variety of ROTC information – brochures, multimedia items such as CD-ROMs, scholarship applications. Once the prospect indicates interest in Army ROTC, and college of interest/choice, his/her name and other data are forwarded to the ROTC department on that campus who initiates contact and closes the sale.
Q119.  Do any of these steps bring prospective recruits together with each other, or with enlisted personnel (excluding recruiting personnel) or veterans? 

A119.  Campus recruiting and lead-generation events on campus sometimes bring ROTC prospects together on campus to interact with each other, current cadets and members of the cadre.  Other events bring prospects into direct contact with Soldiers, where they can have face-to-face exposure. Further, the Army web site, goarmy.com provides opportunities to gain expanded information and through the chat room, gain exposure to what other young adults are asking questions about. 

Q120. What process nurtures interest or intention after meeting a recruiter but before enlistment?  What are the follow-on steps, by whom, and when?  Do any of these steps seek to: 
· Qualify (or rank) a prospect
· Disqualify a prospect
· Maintain/increase a prospect’s interest
· Maintain/increase a prospect’s intention 
A120.  The ROTC campus recruiter maintains telephone and written contact with prospects up through enrollment. The process encompasses all four of the steps mentioned.  The enlisted recruiter follows the same process.
Q121.  What materials or other communications activities are developed for parents or other domestic guardians? 

A121.  Brochures, television advertisements, print advertisements, and web content have been developed for parents or other influencers. 

Q122. What process maintains intention among DEP students?  What are the follow-on steps, by whom, and when? 

A122.  There is a requirement for recruiters and recruiting stations to execute a DEP retention program.  The program is initiated immediately upon contracting with the Army.

Q123.  On average, how many contacts are made for a single accession? 

A123.  Army data tracks contracts from appointments made through the process of testing, to passing the test, MEPS processing to contract.  Information is as follows:

Grads:

Appointment Made to Appointment Conducted

4.9:1

Appointment Conducted to Test



3.8:1

Test to Test Passed





2.4:1

Test Passed to Floor (MEPS)



1.5:1

Floor to Contract





  .6:1

Seniors:

Appointment Made to Appointment Conducted

6:7:1

Appointment Conducted to Test



4.5:1

Test to Test Passed





1.3:1

Test Passed to Floor (MEPS)
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Floor to Contract





  .5:1

Q124. What is the overall conversion rate from responder, to lead, to accession?  Is it available for Active and Reserve? Is it available for FY2000 – 04? 

A124.
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FY00 87.90%NA

FY01 73.00% 3.61%
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FY03 76.70% 3.67%

FY04

2

78.6%

3

2.69%

4

CONVERSION RATES


NOTES 

1:  Contracts included are ONLY those that contracted prior to the end of the Fiscal Year.  Some leads will continue to convert well after the end of the year and cause the conversion rate to increase over time.

2:  Data for FY04 through May 31.

3:  As end of week 07/04/2004

4:  This relatively low lead to contract conversion rate reflects, at least in part, the fact that a higher percentage of the annual leads (eight months versus normal twelve) have not matured.  Some of these leads will continue to convert throughout the rest of the fiscal year and beyond, and cause an increase to the conversion rate.

Response to lead conversion rate shows an increasing trend over time.  This is true even though in the last two years several new rules screen out more responses.  Among those new rules is the requirement for the response to include age or year of education, whether they have asthma, and matching against the Defense Management Data Center (DMDC) to screen those responses that are already in the military.

The table below reflects the conversion rate by component for the period of time October 2003 through June 2004.  Response Service is the service about which the lead expressed an interest.  The Response Service row labeled: “Combined Component” includes those leads which expressed interest in both components, or which did not select a component of interest.

                                             
[image: image2.emf]Response Service RA USAR

Active Component 4.48% 0.69%

Reserve Component 1.04% 1.21%

Combined Component 1.42% 0.55%


Q125.  Does the conversion rate differ for minority populations?  If so, what are they for Hispanics, African Americans and Asian Pacific Islanders?  

A125.  Yes.  However, observers of this phenomenon are cautioned to avoid the conclusion that the difference in conversion rate is due to ethnicity, race or minority population affiliation, or to some other factor.  The difference in conversion rates is more than likely due to a variety of factors, working synergistically.  Further, the combination of factors that seem to influence one category are probably not the same combination of factors that influence another category.  The table below reflects the ethnicity of those persons who reported that factor. 
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Native American 1.80%

Asian American 2.80%

Black/African American 2.40%

Hispanic/Latino 2.10%

White 3.30%

Other 1.60%

NA 1.80%


Q126.  Does the conversion rate differ geographically, and if so, how? 

A126.   There are certainly differences in conversion rate.  However, it is not known if the differences are due to geography, regional culture, values, economy, propensity, advertising dollars spent, mission assigned, command emphasis, ethnic or minority populations, other factors or which combination of factors might influence the differences.  Furthermore, it is not known if the differences are statistically significant.  

Q127.  Are there any long term commitments that the Army or the incumbent agency have entered into which are assignable and for which a new agency would take responsibility?  Specific commitments that come to mind include, but are not limited to Fulfillment, Telemarketing, NASCAR, NHRA, etc.  

A127.  The incumbent agency has entered into year-to-year agreements, which are assignable such as NASCAR, NHRA, Telemarketing, All American Bowl, Fulfillment, LEADS/ARMS, etc.  This includes media purchases in the upfront marketplace that are non-cancelable.

CC3, Ivyland, PA – the ROTC online local advertising ordering system (LAPS) and the prospect management/fulfillment database (QUEST).

Q128. Please identify the current Fulfillment and Telemarketing vendors.  When were these contracts awarded and when do the final options expire for each?  

A128.  All sub-contracts are for one year with an option to renew for three additional years.  The end date is September 30.

Merkle Data Technologies, Inc (List processing) 1 year remaining.

CC3 Acquisitions LLC (Fulfillment, Database management) 2 years remaining.

Precision Response Corporation (Operator telemarketing service) 2 years remaining.

Wessan Interactive (IVR telemarketing service) 2 years remaining.

Rocky Mountain Data Control (Data entry) 3 years remaining. 

Q129.  Does USAREC currently use screening models to filter less-propensed prospects out of mail drops?  Does this begin with the first DM drop (in HSJR year), or occur subsequently? 

A129.  Yes.  Direct marketing models target the prospects most likely to respond and contract.  USAREC has recently implemented a leads prioritization model to aid recruiters in identifying which leads should be worked first.

Q130. What are the privacy restrictions (if any) on the data we will collect in the recruitment process? 

A.130.   The information obtained can be used only for military recruiting purposes.  See Title 10 USC, Section 503. 

Q131.  What percentage of DR response comes from prospects versus influencers? 

A131.   For ROTC more than 90 percent of DR response comes from prospects.
Q132.  Has recruiter walk-in traffic increased/decreased/remained unchanged during the past two years? 

A132.  Walk-in traffic analysis is provided below.  Data is for FY 2002 and 2003.

	Data From: LeadSource_ALLRECORDS_BDE with latest contract date of: 20040702, Updated: 20040706
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	RSID
	NAME
	LS
	CONTRACTED
	LEADS
	CONVERSION
	% CONTRACTS
	% LEADS

	FY03
	USAREC
	WI
	12177
	44761
	27.2
	8.22
	1.72

	FY02
	USAREC
	WI
	11728
	35684
	32.87
	8.96
	1.7


Q133.  Is there a database of honorable discharged Army vets from the past 10-15 years that Army owns?  What are the parameters of its use?  Is the file regularly updated? 

A133.  DMDC has a system - Prior Service Military Search System (PSMSS) that is only as good as the DD-214 or the last record update, which is not mandatory.  This only includes the recruitable population.  Access to this file is available primarily for recruiters as a lead source.  This file only includes most the recent vets (only 3 years, 250K records).  DMDC has a larger file with every vet listed called the PS Military Address File.  All information in these files must be approved for release due to privacy act information.

Q134. Is it possible to obtain a data extract of 100,000 random records of recruits enlisted over the past five years? 

A134.  A statistical analysis is available; however, individual personnel records are not releasable to third parties.
Q135.  Are the current local advertising processing systems (MOPS and LAPS) the property of the Government, the incumbent agency, a third party, etc?  

A135.  LAPS is owned by the government but operated and hosted by a third-party subcontractor, CC3, Ivyland, PA.  MOPS is also owned by the government and is hosted by the incumbent agency. 
Q136.  Can a subcontractor who is service connected disabled and small business certified be used to satisfy both goals?

A136.  Yes.

Q137.  Is a subcontracting plan with a goal of 28% for small business acceptable for this Army contract?  I notice the percentage has been raised in the solicitation, is this a new FAR requirement?

A137.  Yes, it will be considered IAW the evaluation criteria. No, it is not a FAR requirement. It is a goal for this solicitation. 

Q.138.  Page 89 Addendum to FAR Provision 52.212-1 deals with the proposal requirements. There seem to be some overlap in a title. Volume I is entitled – Questionnaire Performance Assessment Plan. However, Volume 4 addresses a Performance Assessment Plan. Is the preferred title for Volume One simply Questionnaire (Streamlined Technical Proposal)?  Or Volume One Questionnaire (Streamlined Technical Written Proposal)?  Is the preferred title for Volume II Complete RFP/Reps and Certs?  Or Volume II Complete RFP/Representations and Certifications?

A138.  Yes, the title is revised to read… Volume 1 - Questionnaire (Streamlined Technical (Written) Proposal). Yes, Volume 2 – Request For Proposal (RFP).
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